
 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING  
BE IT KNOWN that the City Council of the City of Alvin will meet in Regular Session on 
Thursday, March 19, 2015 at 7:00 P.M. in the Council Chambers located on the 2nd floor of Alvin 
City Hall, 216 West Sealy Street, Alvin, Texas, with the following agenda: 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. INVOCATION 
 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

4. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 
A.   Mayor to present a proclamation declaring April 2015 as Fair Housing Month. 
 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

A. Approve minutes of the February 26, 2015 Special City Council meeting.  
 

B. Approve minutes of the March 5, 2015 Regular City Council meeting.   
 

6. PETITIONS OR REQUESTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Speakers may be limited to 2, 3 or 5 minutes according to Section 2-24 of the Code of Ordinances, City of 
Alvin, Texas. State law prohibits the Mayor and members of the City Council from commenting on any 
statement or engaging in dialogue without an appropriate agenda item being posted in accordance with the 
Texas Open Meetings Law.  Comments should be directed to the entire council, not individual members. 
Engaging in verbal attacks or comments intended to insult, abuse, malign or slander any individual shall be 
cause for termination of time privileges and expulsion from Council Chambers. 
 

7. REPORTS FROM CITIZENS BOARDS, COMMISSIONS, AND COMMITTEES 
  

8. PUBLIC HEARING - NONE 
 

9. CONSENT AGENDA: CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: 
All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine, and require little or no deliberation 
by City Council.  These items will be enacted/approved by one motion unless a Council member requests 
separate action on an item, in which event the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and 
considered by separate action.  Approval of the Consent Agenda enacts the items of legislation and 
authorizes implementation of other items. 

 
A. Consider Ordinance 15-I amending the City of Alvin 2014-2015 Fiscal Year Budget 

by increasing (decreasing) certain expenditures and increasing (decreasing) certain 
revenues to the individual budget accounts in all funds set forth in the attached 
Exhibit “A”; second reading. 

 
B. Consider authorizing Judge Donna Starkey and Judge Bill Pannell to attend the 

Legislative Update educational training in Houston, Texas on August 14, 2015. 
 

10. MATTERS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 
 

11. OTHER BUSINESS:   



AGENDA - 2 -                   March 19, 2015 
 
 

 

Council may approve, discuss, refer, or postpone items under Other Business. 
 

A. Presentation by Belt, Harris, Pechacek, LLP of the City’s Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report (CAFR) as of September 30, 2014; and Council’s 
acknowledgment of receipt of the CAFR.  
 

B. Consider the appointment of Belt, Harris, Pechacek, LLP as the City’s auditors for 
the year ending September 30, 2015, and authorize the Mayor to sign the Auditor’s 
Engagement Letter. 

 
C. Consider Ordinance 15-K annexing a 43.24 acre tract, more or less, located along 

East Highway 6 in Brazoria County, Texas (Frank’s Casing Alvin) into the 
corporate limits of the City; approving a service plan for the annexed area; making 
findings of fact; providing a severability clause; and providing an effective date; 
first reading. 

 
D. Consider Resolution 15-R-09 in opposition of Senate Bill (SB) number 182, House 

Bill (HB) number 365, Senate Bill (SB) number 156, Senate Joint Resolution 
number (SJR) 14, House Bill (HB) number 957, House Joint Resolution (HJR) 
number 71, and any other legislation of the 84th Texas legislature, regular session, 
that would limit the ability of the City of Alvin, to provide services to its residents 
and businesses. 

 
E. Receive and acknowledge the monthly financial report for February, 2015. 
 

12. REPORTS FROM CITY MANAGER 
  

A. Review preliminary list of items for the Council meeting of April 9, 2015. 
 
B. Items of Community Interest. 

 
13. REPORTS FROM COUNCIL MEMBERS 

 
Pursuant to S.B. No. 1182, City Council Members may make a report or an announcement about items of 
community interest during a meeting of the governing body. No action will be taken or discussed. 

 
A. Announcements and requests from Council members.  

 
14.   CLOSED EXECUTIVE SESSION:  The City Council will convene into a closed 

executive meeting in accordance with the Texas Government Code, pursuant to the 
authority contained in:   
 

A. Section 551.074 of the Government Code: Deliberation on the appointment, employment, 
evaluation, reassignment, duties,  discipline or dismissal of a public officer or employee or 
to hear a  complaint or charge against an officer or employee unless the officer or employee 
who is the subject of the deliberation or hearing requests a public hearing.  

 

1. City Manager Search. 
 



AGENDA - 3 -                   March 19, 2015 
 
 

 

15. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 

I hereby certify that this Public Notice was placed on the Official Bulletin Board at City Hall on THURSDAY, 
MARCH 12, 2015 at 5:00 p.m. 

 
 (SEAL)       

__________________________________ 
Dixie Roberts, City Clerk 

 
I hereby certify that this Public Notice was removed from the Official Bulletin Board at City Hall on this the 
___________ day of ________________________ 2015, at __________ a. /p.m.  

 
___________________________________  
Dixie Roberts, City Clerk 
 

** All meetings of the City Council are open to the public, except when there is a necessity to meet in Executive Session 
(closed to the public) under the provisions of Chapter 551, Texas Government Code. The Council reserves the right to 
convene into executive session on any of the above posted agenda items that qualify for an executive session by publicly 
announcing the applicable section of the Open Meetings Act, including but not limited to sections 551.071 (litigation and 
certain consultation with the attorney), 551.072 (acquisition of interest in real property), 551.073 (contract for gift to city), 
551.074 (certain personnel deliberations), or 551.087 (qualifying economic development negotiations). 

 
If you plan to attend this meeting and you have a disability that requires special arrangements at the meeting, please contact the 
City Clerk at 281-388-4255 or droberts@cityhall.cityofalvin.com. Requests for special services must be received 48 hours prior to 
the meeting time.  Reasonable accommodations will be made to assist your needs.  City Hall is wheel chair accessible and a sloped 
curb entry is available at the East and West Entrances to the City Hall.  



AGENDA COMMENTARY 
 

 

 

Discussion Date:     

Approval Date:     

Submitted By: 

SUBJECT: 

 

 

 

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1.        4. 
2.        5.   
3.        6. 
 

Submitted by:   Funds Available:  Approved as to Form:  Approved By: 

 

Department Head  Finance Director  City Attorney    City Manager 

03/19/2015

Dixie Roberts

Mayor to present a proclamation declaring April 2015 as Fair Housing Month.

This proclamation is presented annually and was initiated by the Department of Housing 
and Urban Development to reinforce the department's commitment to the concept of Fair 
Housing and Equal Opportunity. 
 
The City of Alvin affirmatively supports federal objectives related to Fair Housing and Equal 
Opportunity.

Mayoral reading of proclamation.

Proclamation

Dixie 
Roberts

Digitally signed by Dixie Roberts 
DN: cn=Dixie Roberts, o=City of 
Alvin, ou=City Clerk, 
email=droberts@cityofalvin.com, 
c=US 
Date: 2015.03.04 13:45:16 
-06'00'

Bobbi J 
Kacz

Digitally signed by Bobbi J Kacz 
DN: cn=Bobbi J Kacz, o=City of 
Alvin, ou=Legal Department, 
email=bkacz@cityofalvin.com, c=US 
Date: 2015.03.10 16:01:47 -05'00'

Junru
Roland

Digitally signed by Junru Roland 
DN: cn=Junru Roland, 
email=jroland@cityofalvin.com,
o=City of Alvin, ou=Finance 
Department, c=US 
Date: 2015.03.12 08:23:39 -05'00'



Office of the Mayor, City of Alvin, Texas  

cÜÉvÄtÅtà|ÉÇ 
 

WHEREAS, the Department of Housing and Urban Development has initiated the sponsorship of 

activities during the month of April of each year designed to reinforce the Department’s commitment to the concept of 

Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity;  and 

 

  WHEREAS, the City of Alvin affirmatively supports the efforts of the Federal Government and the 

State of Texas to assure equal access to all Americans to rental housing and homeownership opportunities; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Alvin welcomes this opportunity to reaffirm its commitment to provide equal 

access to housing to all of its residents without regard to race, color, religion, sex, disability, familial status, national 

origin or source of income; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Alvin affirmatively supports programs that will educate the public concerning 

their rights to equal housing opportunities and to participate in efforts with other organizations to assure every person 

their right to fair housing; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Alvin is honored to join the Federal Government, the State of Texas, and 

local jurisdictions across America in celebrating the rich diversity of our people and the right of all citizens to live 

where they choose without fear of discrimination. 

 

  NOW, THEREFORE, I Paul A. Horn, Mayor of the City of Alvin, Texas, do hereby proclaim April as 

the month to celebrate and honor all efforts which guarantee the right to live free of discriminatory housing practices 

and proclaim this month as: 

 

“FAIR HOUSING MONTH” 

 

and urge all local officials and public and private organizations to join activities designed to further Fair Housing 

objectives. 

  

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and cause the Seal of the City of Alvin to be 

affixed this the 19th day of March, 2015. 

.              
         __________________________________ 

         Paul A. Horn, Mayor 
         



MINUTES 
CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS 
216 W. SEALY STREET 

CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING 
PUBLIC HEARING  

THURSDAY FEBRUARY 26, 2015 
6:00 P.M. 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
BE IT REMEMBERED that, on the above date, the City Council of the City of Alvin, Texas, met 
in Special Public Hearing Session at 7:00 P.M. in the Council Chambers at City Hall, with the 
following members present: Mayor Paul A. Horn, Council members: Gabe Adame, Brad Richards, 
Roger Stuksa and Keith Thompson.  Also present: Dixie Roberts, City Clerk.  Absent:  Council 
member’s:  Adam Arendell, Scott Reed, and Terry Droege. 
 
INVOCATION 
Mayor Paul Horn led the invocation. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Council member Richards led the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
A public hearing for the annexation of a 43.24, more or less, acres of land requested by Keith 
Mosing for property at the Frank’s Casing Crew location at 3735 East Highway 6 in Brazoria 
County, Texas.   
 
Mayor Horn opened the public hearing at 7:01 p.m. 
 
Mayor Horn closed the public hearing at 7:02 p.m. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Council member Adame moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:02 p.m. Seconded by Council member 
Stuksa; motion to adjourn carried on a vote of 4Ayes.  
 
 
 
PASSED and APPROVED this ______ day of ________________, 2015. 
 
 
 
      __________________________  
        Paul A. Horn, Mayor  
 
 
ATTEST: ___________________________  
                  Dixie Roberts, City Clerk 



MINUTES 
CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS 
216 W. SEALY STREET 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
THURSDAY MARCH 5, 2015 

7:00 P.M. 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
BE IT REMEMBERED that, on the above date, the City Council of the City of Alvin, Texas, met in 
Regular Session at 7:00 P.M. in the Council Chambers at City Hall, with the following members 
present: Mayor Paul A. Horn, Council members: Gabe Adame, Adam Arendell, Scott Reed, Brad 
Richards, Roger Stuksa and Keith Thompson. Also present: Junru Roland, Interim City Manager; 
Bobbi Kacz, City Attorney and Dixie Roberts, City Clerk.  Absent:  Councilmember Terry Droege.   
 
INVOCATION 
Councilmember Adame gave the invocation.   
 
SPECIAL PRESENTATION 
Mayor Horn presented a proclamation proclaiming the month of March, 2105 as DeMolay month. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Council member Stuksa led the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag. 
 
Council member Reed led the Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Approve minutes of the February 10, 2015 City Council Workshop session. 
Council member Adame moved to approve the City Council Workshop session meeting minutes of 
February 10, 2015. Seconded by Council member Stuksa; motion to approve carried on a vote of 6 
Ayes. 
 
Approve minutes of the February 19, 2015 City Council Workshop session. 
Council member Reed moved to approve the City Council workshop session minutes of February 19, 
2015. Seconded by Council member Richards; motion to approve carried on a vote of 6 Ayes. 
 
Approve minutes of the February 19, 2015 Regular City Council meeting 
Council member Arendell moved to approve the regular City Council meeting minutes of February 19, 
2015. Seconded by Council member Reed; motion to approve carried on a vote of 6 Ayes. 
 
PETITIONS OR REQUESTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
There were no requests or petitions from the public.  
 
REPORTS FROM CITIZENS BOARDS, COMMISSIONS, AND COMMITTEES 
No reports were given. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
There were no public hearings. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - 2 -                       March 5, 2015 

 
CONSENT AGENDA: CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 
 
A. Consider street closures for Opening Day festivities of Alvin Little League Baseball at Lions Park 

scheduled for Saturday, March 28, 2015 from 8 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.; street closures requested are 
College Dr. at W. Dumble St. and College Dr. at Stadium Dr. for all incoming and outgoing traffic.  

 
B. Consider approval of out of state travel for Ron Schmitz (E.M.S. Director) from March 19 - 23, 

2015 to White Sands Missile Range, New Mexico, to attend the 26th Annual Bataan Memorial 
Death March as part of a training deployment of the State of Texas's Emergency Medical Task 
Force (EMTF). 

 
Council member Adame moved to approve the items on the consent agenda. Seconded by Council 
member Arendell; motion to approve carried on a vote of 6 Ayes. 
 
MATTERS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 
There were no items removed. 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 

Request to be on agenda by Janice Knape Steffen, owner of BlueHouse Coffee on the Go, to discuss 
her desire and intent to operate a coffee delivery service within the city. 
Ms. Janice Knape Steffen stated that she is the owner of Blue House Coffee on the Go, a coffee 
delivery service.  She is seeking permission to operate her business within the city.  She informed 
council that she currently has permits to operate with Angleton, Lake Jackson and Brazoria County.   
 
Council member Reed asked if Ms. Steffen had enlisted the use of a commissary, as required. 
 
Ms. Steffen stated that she was in the process of acquiring a commissary.  The other cities are not 
requiring the use of a commissary.  
 
Council member Reed informed Ms. Steffen that the city wants to see her business succeed, but rules 
and regulations have to be followed. 
 
Discussion continued on the type of services offered by Blue House Coffee, the commissary required 
by the State, the city’s mobile vendor and corridor ordinances.  
 
Mr. Kendall Steffen stated that they are seeking an exception to the corridor ordinance in order to be 
able to deliver coffee along the corridor. He stated that they will not be “soliciting” business, but will 
be delivering as requested.  
 
Discussion continued. 
 
Ms. Kacz, City Attorney stated that the mobile vendor and the food and food establishment ordinances 
need to be revised.  She suggested that council hold a workshop to discuss the needed revisions to the 
ordinances.  City Council concurred.   
 
Consider a variance request submitted by Robert Findley, on behalf of Genesis Energy LLC, for a 
reduction in the amount of insurance required for the pipeline permit that was granted by Ordinance 
14-HH in November 2014. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - 3 -                       March 5, 2015 

 
In November 2014 Ordinance 14-HH was approved by Council granting Genesis Energy LLC a permit to reroute an 
existing 8" crude oil pipeline that was constructed in the late 1930s and currently runs under the warehouse facility 
located at 715 N. 2nd Street that is owned by GP Assets. Genesis has requested that their contractor be allowed to reduce 
the amount of insurance coverage provided for the portion of the work that is in the Dryer Street right-of-way from the 
$25,000,000 per occurrence and aggregate, as required by the ordinance, to $10,000,000 for each occurrence and 
aggregate which is more in line with pipeline industry standard. 
 
Council member Reed moved to approve a variance request submitted by Robert Findley, on behalf of 
Genesis Energy LLC, for a reduction in the amount of insurance required for the pipeline permit that 
was granted by Ordinance 14-HH in November 2014. Seconded by Council member  
Thompson; motion to approve carried on a vote of 6 Ayes. 

 
Consider a plat requested under the Final Plat Procedure for Heritage South, 23.5136 acres consisting 
of Pecan Ridge Subdivision, which are Lots 1 and 2, of a 4.1319 acre tract of a 4.9996 acre tract, and 
of a 10.9800 acre tract in the City of Alvin, Brazoria County, Texas. 
In November 2014 Ordinance 14-HH was approved by Council granting Genesis Energy LLC a permit to reroute an 
existing 8" crude oil pipeline that was constructed in the late 1930s and currently runs under the warehouse facility 
located at 715 N. 2nd Street that is owned by GP Assets. Genesis has requested that their contractor be allowed to reduce 
the amount of insurance coverage provided for the portion of the work that is in the Dryer Street right-of-way from the 
$25,000,000 per occurrence and aggregate, as required by the ordinance, to $10,000,000 for each occurrence and 
aggregate which is more in line with pipeline industry standard. 
 
Council member Thompson moved approve a plat requested under the Final Plat Procedure for 
Heritage South, 23.5136 acres consisting of Pecan Ridge Subdivision, which are Lots 1 and 2, of a 
4.1319 acre tract of a 4.9996 acre tract, and of a 10.9800 acre tract in the City of Alvin, Brazoria 
County, Texas.  Seconded by Council member Arendell; motion to approve carried on a vote of 5 
Ayes, with Council member Stuksa voting No. 

 
Consider Ordinance 15-I amending the City of Alvin 2014-2015 Fiscal Year Budget by increasing 
(decreasing) certain expenditures and increasing (decreasing) certain revenues to the individual budget 
accounts in all funds set forth in the attached Exhibit “A”. 
City Council considered each proposed budget amendment presented by number: 
 

GENERAL FUND    
Animal Shelter Program    
#1 111-3501-18-1001 Salaries  $13,063  
 111-3501-18-1009 TMRS     $2,238  
 111-3501-18-1011 FICA     $1,000  
 111-9001-00-3252 Insurance     $4,700  
    $21,000 Hire 1 full time Kennel Tech 

 
Council member Thompson moved to approve budget amendment #1 as stated above; Seconded by 
Council member Richards; motion to approve carried on a vote of 6 Ayes. 
 

HUMAN RESOURCE S 
DEPARTMENT 

   

#2 111-2503-00-1001 Salaries  $(16,830)  
 111-1005-00-1009 TMRS   $ (2,883)  
 111-1005-00-1011 FICA    $(1,287)  
  $ (21,000) Postpone hiring HR Director 

 
Council member Stuksa moved to approve budget amendment #2 as stated above; Seconded by 
Council member Adame; motion to approve carried on a vote of 6 Ayes. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - 4 -                       March 5, 2015 

 
MUNICIPAL COURT 
TECHNOLOGY FUND 

   

#3 124-2502-00-3100 Contractual Services    $2,000 Copy Machine 
 124-300000 Fund Balance    $2,000  

 
Council member Richards moved to approve budget amendment #3 as stated above; Seconded by 
Council member Arendell; motion to approve carried on a vote of 6 Ayes. 
 

CONTINGENCY FUND    
#4 311-9001-00-3530 Reserved Contingency    $5,000 Keep Alvin Beautiful Contribution 
 311-300000 Fund Balance   $5,000  

 
Council member Arendell moved to approve budget amendment #4 as stated above; Seconded by 
Council member Reed; motion to approve carried on a vote of 6 Ayes. 
 

HOTEL OCCUPANCY 
TAX FUND 

   

#5 121-1006-14-3172 Shooting Range  $7,800  
 121-300000 Fund Balance    $7,800 NSSF Shot Show Conference 

 
Council member Reed moved to approve budget amendment #5 as stated above; Seconded by Council 
member Arendell; motion to approve carried on a vote of 6 Ayes. 
 

IMPACT FEE FUND    
#6 210-5001-17-3100 Contractual Services $300,000 Engineering for Dyche Lane Elevated 

Storage Tank 
#7 210-5001-17-3100 Contractual Services   $66,700 Utility Master Plan 
 210-300000 Fund Balance $366,700  

 
Council member Thompson moved to approve budget amendment #6 as stated above; Seconded by 
Council member Richards; motion to approve carried on a vote of 6 Ayes. 
 
Council member Arendell moved to approve budget amendment #7 as stated above; Seconded by 
Council member Adame; motion to approve carried on a vote of 6 Ayes. 
 

EMS FUND    
#8 213-3503-00-1001 Salaries   $26,196  
 213-3503-00-1009 TMRS     $4,490  
 213-3503-00-1011 FICA     $2,004  
     $32,690 Salary increase for EMTs, paramedics, 

and supervisors 
#9 213-402070 ESD Revenue   $41,830 Additional Funds from 2015 Emergency 

Service District Contract 
 
Council member Adame moved to approve budget amendment #8 as stated above; Seconded by 
Council member Arendell; motion to approve carried on a vote of 6 Ayes. 
 
Council member Adame moved to approve budget amendment #9 as stated above; Seconded by 
Council member Thompson; motion to approve carried on a vote of 6 Ayes. 
 

SALES FAX FUND    
#10 312-5501-00-9025 Detention Improvements $200,000 Preliminary cost to start Detention Project 
 312-300000 Fund Balance $200,000  

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - 5 -                       March 5, 2015 

 
Council member Adame moved to approve budget amendment #10 as stated above; Seconded by 
Council member Stuksa; motion to approve carried on a vote of 6 Ayes. 
 
Council member Arendell moved to approve Ordinance 15-I amending the City of Alvin 2014-2015 
Fiscal Year Budget by increasing (decreasing) certain expenditures and increasing (decreasing) certain 
revenues to the individual budget accounts in all funds set forth in the attached Exhibit “A”; on first 
reading.  Seconded by Council member Thompson; motion to approve carried on a vote of 6 Ayes. 
 
Consider Resolution 15-R-08 opposing Senate Bill 343 and any other legislation which would erode 
the authority of a Home Rule Municipality. 
Regarding the current legislative session, Senator Don Huffines (Dallas area) filed Senate Bill 343. Senate Bill 343 would 
have the effect of turning home rule cities into general law cities. This bill absolutely erodes the powers of a home rule 
municipality to adopt ordinances affecting the City's ability to govern its citizens. Under the bill, city voters and locally-
elected officials would have to get the state legislature's permission to enact any local ordinance, rule, or regulation. The 
Texas Municipal League has written to Senator Huffines and also published a white paper regarding this bill. Both are 
attached for review. Should Council adopt this Resolution, a copy will be sent to all elected representatives for the City and 
to Senator Huffines. 
 
Council member Arendell moved to adopt Resolution 15-R-08 opposing Senate Bill 343 and any other 
legislation which would erode the authority of a Home Rule Municipality.  Seconded by Council 
member Richards; motion to approve carried on a vote of 6 Ayes. 

 
Consider awarding a bid to Napco Chemical Company to purchase Sodium Bisulfite for one (1) year 
with an option to continue for an additional year at the same price and conditions for an estimated total 
of $30,000.00. 
On February 10, 2015 bids were opened and Napco Chemical Company was the lowest bidder at $1.65 per gallon. 
Estimated total cost of Sodium Bisulfite is $30,000 from account 211-6003-00-2425.  Sodium Bisulfite is used at the WWTP 
to process wastewater. Upon Council approval, an award letter will be sent to the vendor and City departments. 
 
Council member Thompson moved to award a bid to Napco Chemical Company to purchase Sodium 
Bisulfite for one (1) year with an option to continue for an additional year at the same price and 
conditions for an estimated total of $30,000.00.  Seconded by Council member Reed; motion to 
approve carried on a vote of 6 Ayes. 
 
Consider awarding a bid to JDB Services, Inc. as the primary vendor and to Cherry Crush Concrete as 
a secondary vendor to purchase stabilized sand for (1) one year with an option to continue for an 
additional year at the same price and conditions for an estimated total cost of $45,000.00. 
On February 10, 2015 bids were opened and JDB Services, Inc. was the low bidder. In previous years, the equipment at 
the vendor's plants to make stabilized sand periodically broke down. In order to purchase the material for a job, we were 
sent to a second vendor on an emergency basis. If awarded, we will use the primary first and if they cannot produce the 
product, we will go to secondary vendor. Upon Council approval, an award letter will be sent to the vendor and city 
departments. Stabilized sand is used as a base material for streets, driveways, setting culverts, and installation of sewer 
and water lines. Estimated total cost for stabilized sand is $45,000 from accounts: 312-5501-00-2375 Streets, 211-6001-
00-2500 Water, 211-6002-00-2500 Sewer. 
 
Council member Reed moved award a bid to JDB Services, Inc. as the primary vendor and to Cherry 
Crush Concrete as a secondary vendor to purchase stabilized sand for (1) one year with an option to 
continue for an additional year at the same price and conditions for an estimated total cost of 
$45,000.00.  Seconded by Council member Thompson; motion to approve carried on a vote of 6 Ayes. 
 
REPORTS FROM CITY MANAGER 
Review preliminary list of items for the Council meeting of March 5, 2015. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - 6 -                       March 5, 2015 

 
Mr. Roland reviewed the preliminary list for the March 19, 2015 City Council meeting.   
 
Announcements/Items of Community Interest 
Mr. Roland reported that the City of Alvin will be participating in the Great Texas Warrant Roundup 
beginning March 7, 2015.  He also reported that on March 9, 2015 TXDOT will be close CR 149 to 
replace the wooden bridge, which will be closed for 5 to 6 months.  Mr. Roland stated that live 
streaming of council meetings should be available within the next few months via the city website.  
 
REPORTS FROM COUNCILMEMBERS 
Pursuant to S.B. No. 1182, City Councilmembers may make a report or an announcement about items of community 
interest during a meeting of the governing body. No action will be taken or discussed. 
 

Council member Thompson thanked members of staff for their efforts in the cleanup of the wooded 
area along Mustang Road.  
 
Council member Reed spoke against the recent comments made on social media that stated city 
council was not interested in helping its citizens.  He stated that city council works for the citizenry 
and does what is best for the city overall.   
 
Council Richards requested that the newspaper verify information before printing. 
 
Council member Adame asked for an update on the Kost Street detention pond project.  He also 
reported that the Boy Scouts are honoring City Council member Droege and his wife on March 31st at 
Joe’s Barbeque for their continued support and dedication to the community. 
 
Council member Stuksa stated that he is happy to see that work has begun on the detention pond at 
Kost and South Street. 
 
Mayor Horn reported that the City of Alvin was well represented at the Brazoria County Day 
festivities in Austin this past week.  Staff and members of council met with state representatives and 
various agencies regarding issues important to our community.   
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Council member Stuksa moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:51p.m. Seconded by Council member 
Arendell; motion to adjourn carried on a vote of 6 Ayes.  
 
 
PASSED and APPROVED this ______ day of ________________, 2015. 
 
 
 
      __________________________  
        Paul A. Horn, Mayor  
 
 
ATTEST: ___________________________  
                  Dixie Roberts, City Clerk 



AGENDA COMMENTARY 

Discussion Date:     

Approval Date:   

Submitted By: 

SUBJECT: 

 

DISCUSSION: 

RECOMMENDATION: 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1.   4. 
2.   5. 
3. 6. 

Submitted by:  Funds Available: Approved as to Form: Approved By: 

 

Department Head Finance Director City Attorney City Manager

03/05/2015

03/05/2015

J. Roland

Consider Ordinance 15-I amending the City of Alvin 2014-2015 Fiscal Year Budget by 
increasing (decreasing) certain expenditures and increasing (decreasing) certain revenues 
to the individual budget accounts in all funds set forth in the attached Exhibit “A”.

Move to approve Ordinance 15-I amending the fiscal year 2014-15 budget.

Ordinance 15-I
Exhibit "A"

Junru 
Roland

Digitally signed by Junru Roland 
DN: cn=Junru Roland, 
email=jroland@cityofalvin.com, 
o=City of Alvin, ou=Finance 
Department, c=US 
Date: 2015.02.25 13:51:12 
-06'00'

Junru
Roland

Digitally signed by Junru Roland 
DN: cn=Junru Roland, 
email=jroland@cityofalvin.com, o=City 
of Alvin, ou=Finance Department, 
c=US
Date: 2015.02.26 15:33:02 -06'00'

Bobbi J 
Kacz

Digitally signed by Bobbi J Kacz 
DN: cn=Bobbi J Kacz, o=City of 
Alvin, ou=Legal Department, 
email=bkacz@cityofalvin.com, c=US 
Date: 2015.02.26 13:16:11 -06'00'

Junru
Roland

Digitally signed by Junru Roland 
DN: cn=Junru Roland, 
email=jroland@cityofalvin.com,
o=City of Alvin, ou=Finance 
Department, c=US 
Date: 2015.02.26 15:33:12 -06'00'

Second Reading



ORDINANCE 15-I 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CITY OF ALVIN 
2014-2015 FISCAL YEAR BUDGET BY INCREASING 
(DECREASING) CERTAIN EXPENDITURES AND 
INCREASING (DECREASING) CERTAIN REVENUES 
TO THE INDIVIDUAL BUDGET ACCOUNTS IN ALL 
FUNDS SET FORTH IN THE ATTACHED “EXHIBIT 
A”. 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, 
TEXAS;  
 
Section 1.  That the City of Alvin 2014-2015 Fiscal Year Budget is hereby amended by 
increasing (decreasing) certain expenditures and increasing (decreasing) certain revenues to the 
individual budget accounts in all funds set forth in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by reference. 
 
Section 2. Open Meetings Act.   It is hereby officially found and determined that the 
meeting at which this Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public 
notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open 
Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, Tex. Gov’t Code. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on first reading this ____ day of ________________, 2015. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on second and final reading this ___ day of _____________, 2015. 
 
 
ATTEST:      CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS 
 
 
By: __________________________  By: _______________________________ 
       Dixie Roberts, City Clerk   Paul Horn, Mayor 
 

 



EXHIBIT "A"
FY 2014/2015 Council Budget

Mid-Year Amendments 

GENERAL FUND
Animal Shelter Program

#1 111-3501-18-1001 Salaries 13,063      
111-3501-18-1009 TMRS 2,238        
111-3501-18-1011 FICA 1,000        
111-9001-00-3252 Insurance 4,700        

21,000     Hire 1 full time Kennel Tech
Human Resources Department

#2 111-2503-00-1001 Salaries (16,830)     
111-1005-00-1009 TMRS (2,883)       
111-1005-00-1011 FICA (1,287)       

(21,000)    Postpone hiring HR Director

MUNICIPAL COURT TECHNOLOGY FUND

#3 124-2502-00-3100 Contractual Services 2,000        Copy Machine

124-300000 Fund Balance 2,000       

CONTINGENCY FUND
#4 311-9001-00-3530 Reserved Contingency 5,000        Keep Alvin Beautiful Contribution

311-300000 Fund Balance 5,000       

HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX FUND

#5 121-1006-14-3172 Shooting Range 7,800        

121-300000 Fund Balance 7,800       NSSF Shot Show Conference



EXHIBIT "A"
FY 2014/2015 Council Budget

Mid-Year Amendments 
IMPACT FEE FUND  

#6 210-5001-17-3100 Contractual Services 300,000   Engineering for Dyche Lane Elevated Storage Tank
#7 210-5001-17-3100 Contractual Services 66,700     Utility Master Plan

210-300000 Fund Balance 366,700   

EMS FUND
#8 213-3503-00-1001 Salaries 26,196      

213-3503-00-1009 TMRS 4,490        
213-3503-00-1011 FICA 2,004        

32,690     Salary increase for EMTs, paramedics, and supervisors
 

#9 213-402070 ESD Revenue 41,830     Additional Funds from 2015 Emergency Service District Contract

SALES TAX FUND
#10 312-5501-00-9025 Detention Improvements 200,000   Preliminary cost to start Detention Project

312-300000 Fund Balance 200,000   



AGENDA COMMENTARY 
 

 

 

Discussion Date:     

Approval Date:     

Submitted By: 

SUBJECT: 

 

 

 

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1.        4. 
2.        5.   
3.        6. 
 

Submitted by:   Funds Available:  Approved as to Form:  Approved By: 

 

Department Head  Finance Director  City Attorney    City Manager 

03/19/2015

Sonya Cates

Consider approval of Judge Donna Starkey and Judge Bill Pannell to attend the legislative 
update educational training in Houston, Texas August 14, 2015.

Municipal Court judges are encouraged to complete continuing education credits to 
adequately perform their responsibilities within the court.  The State of Texas has 
organized a training program so that judges can be informed of the latest laws and 
practices. 

Move to authorize Judge Pannell and Judge Starkey to attend the Legislative Update 
Conference in Houston, TX  on August 14, 2015.

Registration forms

Junru 
Roland

Digitally signed by Junru Roland 
DN: cn=Junru Roland, 
email=jroland@cityofalvin.com, 
o=City of Alvin, ou=Finance 
Department, c=US 
Date: 2015.03.11 07:38:24 
-05'00'

Junru
Roland

Digitally signed by Junru Roland 
DN: cn=Junru Roland, 
email=jroland@cityofalvin.com, o=City 
of Alvin, ou=Finance Department, 
c=US
Date: 2015.03.11 07:38:33 -05'00'

Bobbi J 
Kacz

Digitally signed by Bobbi J Kacz 
DN: cn=Bobbi J Kacz, o=City of 
Alvin, ou=Legal Department, 
email=bkacz@cityofalvin.com, c=US 
Date: 2015.03.11 18:12:03 -05'00'

Junru
Roland

Digitally signed by Junru Roland 
DN: cn=Junru Roland, 
email=jroland@cityofalvin.com,
o=City of Alvin, ou=Finance 
Department, c=US 
Date: 2015.03.12 08:24:56 -05'00'









 

 

 

Discussion Date:     

Approval Date:     

Submitted By: 

SUBJECT: 

 

 

 

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1.        4. 
2.        5.   
3.        6. 
 

Submitted by:   Funds Available:  Approved as to Form:  Approved By: 

 

Department Head  Finance Director  City Attorney    City Manager 

03/19/2015

Junru Roland

Presentation by Belt, Harris, Pechacek, LLP of the City's Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report (CAFR) as of September 30, 2014; and Council's acknowledgment of receipt of the 
CAFR.

As required by state statue, an independent audit has been completed by the CPA firm of 
Belt Harris Pechacek, LLLP, for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014.  At the end of an 
audit, Generally Accepted Auditing Standards mandate that auditors must express an 
opinion of the financial records.  For Fiscal 2014, the City received an unmodifed opinion 
from the auditors -- which is the highest form of assurance that our financial statements 
"give a true and fair view" of the City's financial position.  Pursuant to Section 103.003 of 
the Texas Local Government Code, the annual financial statements, including the auditor's 
opinion must be filed with the City Secretary within 180 days after the last day of the fiscal 
year.  The CAFR, which includes the auditor's opinion, will be presented to the Mayor and 
City Council; and to the City Clerk for filing.  Stephanie Harris from Belt Harris Pechacek, 
LLLP will present the report.  A scanned version of the  CAFR is included for your review.  I 
will also have hard copies available for you at the council meeting.

Move to accept the 2014 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

Auditor Disclosure Letter 
2014 CAFR

Junru 
Roland

Digitally signed by Junru Roland 
DN: cn=Junru Roland, 
email=jroland@cityofalvin.com, 
o=City of Alvin, ou=Finance 
Department, c=US 
Date: 2015.03.10 11:46:40 
-05'00'

Single Audit Reports







































































































































































































































































































































































































AGENDA COMMENTARY 
 

 

 

Discussion Date:     

Approval Date:     

Submitted By: 

SUBJECT: 

 

 

 

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1.        4. 
2.        5.   
3.        6. 
 

Submitted by:   Funds Available:  Approved as to Form:  Approved By: 

 

Department Head  Finance Director  City Attorney    City Manager 

03/19/2015

Junru Roland

Consider approval of Belt Harris Pechacek, LLLP as the City's auditors for the fiscal year 
ending September 30, 2015, and authorize the Mayor to sign the Auditor's Engagement 
Letter.

Chapter 103 of the Local Government Code requires cities to have its records and accounts 
audited and a financial statement prepared based on the audit, annually.  Belt Harris 
Pechacek, LLLP has served as the City's auditors for several years, and has an excellent 
working relationship with management and staff.  Their base estimated fee for a financial 
statement audit is $35,355; with an additional estimated fee of $7,000, if the City requires 
a single audit.  A single audit is additional auditing procedures that are required if a city 
receives and expends over $500,000 of federal funds in a fiscal year. 
 
Funding for the 2014-15 audit engagement will come from funds budgeted in accounts 
111-9001-00-3110 and 211-9002-00-3110.

Move to approve Belt Harris Pechacek, LLLP as the City's auditors for the fiscal year ending 
September 30, 2015 and authorize the Mayor to sign the Auditor's Engagement Letter.

Engagement Letter 

Junru 
Roland

Digitally signed by Junru Roland 
DN: cn=Junru Roland, 
email=jroland@cityofalvin.com, 
o=City of Alvin, ou=Finance 
Department, c=US 
Date: 2015.03.09 10:27:49 
-05'00'

Junru
Roland

Digitally signed by Junru Roland 
DN: cn=Junru Roland, 
email=jroland@cityofalvin.com, o=City 
of Alvin, ou=Finance Department, 
c=US
Date: 2015.03.09 10:28:00 -05'00'

Bobbi J 
Kacz

Digitally signed by Bobbi J Kacz 
DN: cn=Bobbi J Kacz, o=City of 
Alvin, ou=Legal Department, 
email=bkacz@cityofalvin.com, c=US 
Date: 2015.03.10 16:53:23 -05'00'

Junru
Roland

Digitally signed by Junru Roland 
DN: cn=Junru Roland, 
email=jroland@cityofalvin.com,
o=City of Alvin, ou=Finance 
Department, c=US 
Date: 2015.03.12 08:21:11 -05'00'





















AGENDA COMMENTARY 
 

 

 

Discussion Date:     

Approval Date:     

Submitted By: 

SUBJECT: 

 

 

 

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1.        4. 
2.        5.   
3.        6. 
 

Submitted by:   Funds Available:  Approved as to Form:  Approved By: 

 

Department Head  Finance Director  City Attorney    City Manager 

03/19/2015

04/09/2015

Bobbi J. Kacz

Consider Ordinance 15-K annexing a 43.24 acre tract, more or less, located along East 
Highway 6 in Brazoria County, Texas (Frank's Casing Alvin) into the corporate limits of the 
City; approving a service plan for the annexed area; making findings of fact; providing a 
severability clause; and providing an effective date; first reading.

Keith Mosing of Mosing Land & Cattle Co. of Texas petitioned the City to annex this 
property where Frank's Casing Alvin is located for his expanded business. Public hearings 
regarding the annexation were held on February 19, 2015 and February 26, 2015. This 
ordinance will finalize the annexation upon passage of the second reading.

Move to approve Ordinance 15-K.

Ord. 15-K with attachments

Bobbi J 
Kacz

Digitally signed by Bobbi J Kacz 
DN: cn=Bobbi J Kacz, o=City of 
Alvin, ou=Legal Department, 
email=bkacz@cityofalvin.com, 
c=US 
Date: 2015.03.10 17:02:35 
-05'00'

Bobbi J 
Kacz

Digitally signed by Bobbi J Kacz 
DN: cn=Bobbi J Kacz, o=City of 
Alvin, ou=Legal Department, 
email=bkacz@cityofalvin.com, c=US 
Date: 2015.03.10 17:02:49 -05'00'

Junru
Roland

Digitally signed by Junru Roland 
DN: cn=Junru Roland, 
email=jroland@cityofalvin.com,
o=City of Alvin, ou=Finance 
Department, c=US 
Date: 2015.03.12 08:22:34 -05'00'



 ORDINANCE NO. 15-K 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS, ANNEXING A 43.24 
ACRE TRACT, MORE OR LESS, INTO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF 
THE CITY; APPROVING A SERVICE PLAN FOR THE ANNEXED 
AREA; MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILILTY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Alvin, Texas, (the “City”) is a home-rule municipality authorized by 
State law and Charter to annex territory lying adjacent and contiguous to the City; 

WHEREAS, the owner of the territory, as hereinafter described, made written request for the 
City to annex such territory in compliance with the Texas Local Government Code and Section 5 
of Article I of the City Charter; 

WHEREAS, the territory, as hereinafter described, is adjacent to the present City limits; 

WHEREAS, the City Council heard and has decided to grant said request; 

WHEREAS, two separate public hearings were conducted prior to consideration of this 
Ordinance in accordance with §43.063 of the Texas Local Government Code; 

WHEREAS, said hearings were conducted and held not more than forty (40) nor less than 
twenty (20) days prior to the institution of annexation proceedings; 

WHEREAS, notice of such public hearings was published in a newspaper of general circulation 
within the City and the territory proposed to be annexed not more than twenty (20) nor less than 
ten (10) days prior to the public hearings; now, therefore, 

WHEREAS, the City intends to provide services to the property to be annexed according to the 
Service Plan attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ALVIN, TEXAS: 
 
Section 1.  That all of the above premises and findings of fact are found to be true and correct 
and are incorporated into the body of this ordinance as if copied in their entirety. 

Section 2.  That the following described property not previously annexed by the City, 
(hereinafter referred to as the “Annexed Property”), is hereby annexed into the corporate limits 
of the City of Alvin: 

 
 All that certain tract or parcel of land being 43.24 acres, more or less, 

located in the I. & G. N. R. R. Co. Survey, Section 26, Abstract 619 
in Brazoria County, Texas, and being more particularly shown and 
described in the Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein 
for all purposes. 



2  

 
Section 3.  That the Service Plan submitted herewith is hereby approved as part of this 
Ordinance, made a part hereof and attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. 

Section 4.  That the future owners and inhabitants of the Annexed Property shall be entitled to all 
of the rights and privileges of the City as set forth in the Service Plan attached hereto as Exhibit 
“B”, and are further bound by all acts, ordinances, and all other legal action now in full force and 
effect and all those which may be hereafter adopted. 

Section 5.  That the official map and boundaries of the City, heretofore adopted and amended be 
and hereby are amended so as to include the Annexed Property as part of the City of Alvin. 

Section 6.  That the Annexed Property shall be assigned to Council District B. 

Section 7.  That if any provision of this Ordinance or the application of any provision to any 
person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or 
applications of the Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 
application, and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 

Section 8.  That this Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and 
publication in accordance with the provisions of Tex. Loc. Gov’t Code. 

Section 9.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, Tex. 
Gov’t Code. 

 

PASSED and APPROVED on first reading on the ____ day of ______________ 2015. 

PASSED and APPROVED on second and final reading on the ____ day of ___________ 2015. 

 
ATTEST:      CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS: 
 
 
 
By: ____________________________  By: ______________________________  
       Dixie Roberts, City Clerk    Paul A. Horn, Mayor 
 

 
 



 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Petition for Annexation with 
Description of Property 

 
 





















Res. 15-R-01 
 

 D. Animal control as follows: 
 
 Service by present personnel, equipment and facilities or by contract with a third party, as 

provided within the City. 
 
 E. Maintenance of parks and playgrounds within the City. 
 
 F. Inspection services in conjunction with building permits and routine City code 

enforcement services by present personnel, equipment and facilities. 
 
 G. Maintenance of other City facilities, buildings and service. 
 
 H. Land use regulation as follows: 
 
 On the effective date of annexation, the regulatory jurisdiction of the City shall be extended 

to include the annexed area, and all property therein shall be subject to the City’s police 
power regulations as set forth in state law and duly adopted ordinances.      

 
(2) Scheduled Municipal Services.  Due to the size and vacancy of the subject property, the 
plans and schedule for the development of the subject property, the following municipal services 
will be provided on a schedule and at increasing levels of service as provided in this Plan:  
 
 A. Water service and maintenance of water facilities as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of water distribution lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of water 

service, water service will be provided to the subjects property, or applicable portions 
thereof, by the utility holding a water certificate of convenience and necessity (“CCN”) for 
the subject property, or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a water CCN, by the utility 
in whose jurisdiction the subject property, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in 
accordance with all the ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time 
to time for the extension of water service.  If connected to the City’s water utility system, the 
subject property’s owner shall construct the internal water lines and pay the costs of line 
extension and construction of such facilities necessary to provide water service to the subject 
property as required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the water lines within the 
subject property and any off-site improvements, water service will be provided by the City 
utility department on the same terms, conditions and requirements as are applied to all 
similarly situated areas and customers of the City; subject to all the ordinances, regulations 
and policies of the City in effect from time to time.  The system will be accepted and 
maintained by the City in accordance with its usual acceptance and maintenance policies.  
New water line extensions will be installed and extended upon request under the same costs 
and terms as with other similarly situated customers of the City.  The ordinances of the City 
in effect at the time a request for service is submitted shall govern the costs and request for 
service.  The continued use of a water well that is in use on the effective date of the 



Res. 15-R-01 
 

annexation and is in compliance with applicable rules and regulations shall be permitted 
and such use may continue until the subject property’s owner requests and is able to 
connect to the City’s water utility system. 

 
 B. Wastewater service and maintenance of wastewater service as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of sewer lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of 

wastewater service, wastewater service will be provided to the subject property, or 
applicable portions thereof, by the utility holding a wastewater CCN for the subject 
property, or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a wastewater CCN, by the utility in 
whose jurisdiction the subject property, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in 
accordance with all the ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time 
to time for the extension of wastewater service.  If connected to the City’s wastewater utility 
system, the subject property’s owner shall construct the internal wastewater lines and pay 
the costs of line extension and construction of facilities necessary to provide wastewater 
service to the subject property as required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the 
wastewater lines within the subject property and any off-site improvements, wastewater 
service will be provided by the City utility department on the same terms, conditions and 
requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and customers of the City, subject 
to all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect from time to time.  The 
wastewater system will be accepted and maintained by the City in accordance with its usual 
policies.  Requests for new wastewater line extensions will be installed and extended upon 
request under the same costs and terms as with other similarly situated customers of the 
City.  The ordinances in effect at the time a request for service is submitted shall govern the 
costs and request for service.  The continued use of a septic system that is in use on the 
effective date of the annexation and is in compliance with all applicable rules and 
regulations shall be permitted and such use may continue until the subject property owner 
requests and is able to connect to the City’s wastewater utility system. 

 
 C. Maintenance of streets and rights-of-way as appropriate as follows: 
 

(i) Provide maintenance services on existing public streets within the subject 
property and other streets that are hereafter constructed and finally accepted by the City.  
The maintenance of the streets and roads will be limited as follows:  

 
  (A) Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous potholes, measures 

necessary for traffic flow, etc.; and 
 
  (B) Routine maintenance as presently performed by the City. 
 

(ii) The City will maintain existing public streets within the subject property, and 
following installation and acceptance of new roadways by the City as provided by city 
ordinance, including any required traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings, other 



Res. 15-R-01 
 

traffic control devices and street lighting, the City will maintain such newly constructed 
public streets, roadways and rights-of-way within the boundaries of the subject property, 
as follows: 

 
(A) As provided in C(i)(A)&(B) above; 

 
  (B) Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, installation of drainage 

facilities, construction of curbs, gutters and other such major improvements as the 
need therefore is determined by the governing body under City policies;  

 
  (C) Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street 

markings and other traffic control devices as the need therefore is established by 
appropriate study and traffic standards; and 

 
  (D) Installation and maintenance of street lighting in accordance with 

established policies of the City; 
 
 (iii)   The outer boundaries of the subject property abut existing roadways.  The 

property owner agrees that no improvements are required on such roadways to service the 
property.    

 
(3)   Capital Improvements.  Construction of the following capital improvements shall be 
initiated after the effective date of the annexation:  None.  Upon development of the subject 
property or redevelopment, the landowner will be responsible for the development costs the same as 
a developer in a similarly situated area under the ordinances in effect at the time of development or 
redevelopment.  No additional capital improvements are necessary at this time to service the subject 
property the same as similarly situated properties. 
 
(4)  Term.  If not previously expired, this service plan expires at the end of ten (10) years. 
 
(5)  Property Description.  The legal description of the subject property is as set forth in exhibits 
attached to the Annexation Ordinance to which this Service Plan is attached.  
 

 
 



 

 

EXHIBIT “B” 
 

Municipal Service Plan 
 





Res. 15-R-01 
 

 D. Animal control as follows: 
 
 Service by present personnel, equipment and facilities or by contract with a third party, as 

provided within the City. 
 
 E. Maintenance of parks and playgrounds within the City. 
 
 F. Inspection services in conjunction with building permits and routine City code 

enforcement services by present personnel, equipment and facilities. 
 
 G. Maintenance of other City facilities, buildings and service. 
 
 H. Land use regulation as follows: 
 
 On the effective date of annexation, the regulatory jurisdiction of the City shall be extended 

to include the annexed area, and all property therein shall be subject to the City’s police 
power regulations as set forth in state law and duly adopted ordinances.      

 
(2) Scheduled Municipal Services.  Due to the size and vacancy of the subject property, the 
plans and schedule for the development of the subject property, the following municipal services 
will be provided on a schedule and at increasing levels of service as provided in this Plan:  
 
 A. Water service and maintenance of water facilities as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of water distribution lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of water 

service, water service will be provided to the subjects property, or applicable portions 
thereof, by the utility holding a water certificate of convenience and necessity (“CCN”) for 
the subject property, or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a water CCN, by the utility 
in whose jurisdiction the subject property, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in 
accordance with all the ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time 
to time for the extension of water service.  If connected to the City’s water utility system, the 
subject property’s owner shall construct the internal water lines and pay the costs of line 
extension and construction of such facilities necessary to provide water service to the subject 
property as required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the water lines within the 
subject property and any off-site improvements, water service will be provided by the City 
utility department on the same terms, conditions and requirements as are applied to all 
similarly situated areas and customers of the City; subject to all the ordinances, regulations 
and policies of the City in effect from time to time.  The system will be accepted and 
maintained by the City in accordance with its usual acceptance and maintenance policies.  
New water line extensions will be installed and extended upon request under the same costs 
and terms as with other similarly situated customers of the City.  The ordinances of the City 
in effect at the time a request for service is submitted shall govern the costs and request for 
service.  The continued use of a water well that is in use on the effective date of the 



Res. 15-R-01 
 

annexation and is in compliance with applicable rules and regulations shall be permitted 
and such use may continue until the subject property’s owner requests and is able to 
connect to the City’s water utility system. 

 
 B. Wastewater service and maintenance of wastewater service as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of sewer lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of 

wastewater service, wastewater service will be provided to the subject property, or 
applicable portions thereof, by the utility holding a wastewater CCN for the subject 
property, or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a wastewater CCN, by the utility in 
whose jurisdiction the subject property, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in 
accordance with all the ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time 
to time for the extension of wastewater service.  If connected to the City’s wastewater utility 
system, the subject property’s owner shall construct the internal wastewater lines and pay 
the costs of line extension and construction of facilities necessary to provide wastewater 
service to the subject property as required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the 
wastewater lines within the subject property and any off-site improvements, wastewater 
service will be provided by the City utility department on the same terms, conditions and 
requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and customers of the City, subject 
to all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect from time to time.  The 
wastewater system will be accepted and maintained by the City in accordance with its usual 
policies.  Requests for new wastewater line extensions will be installed and extended upon 
request under the same costs and terms as with other similarly situated customers of the 
City.  The ordinances in effect at the time a request for service is submitted shall govern the 
costs and request for service.  The continued use of a septic system that is in use on the 
effective date of the annexation and is in compliance with all applicable rules and 
regulations shall be permitted and such use may continue until the subject property owner 
requests and is able to connect to the City’s wastewater utility system. 

 
 C. Maintenance of streets and rights-of-way as appropriate as follows: 
 

(i) Provide maintenance services on existing public streets within the subject 
property and other streets that are hereafter constructed and finally accepted by the City.  
The maintenance of the streets and roads will be limited as follows:  

 
  (A) Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous potholes, measures 

necessary for traffic flow, etc.; and 
 
  (B) Routine maintenance as presently performed by the City. 
 

(ii) The City will maintain existing public streets within the subject property, and 
following installation and acceptance of new roadways by the City as provided by city 
ordinance, including any required traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings, other 



Res. 15-R-01 
 

traffic control devices and street lighting, the City will maintain such newly constructed 
public streets, roadways and rights-of-way within the boundaries of the subject property, 
as follows: 

 
(A) As provided in C(i)(A)&(B) above; 

 
  (B) Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, installation of drainage 

facilities, construction of curbs, gutters and other such major improvements as the 
need therefore is determined by the governing body under City policies;  

 
  (C) Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street 

markings and other traffic control devices as the need therefore is established by 
appropriate study and traffic standards; and 

 
  (D) Installation and maintenance of street lighting in accordance with 

established policies of the City; 
 
 (iii)   The outer boundaries of the subject property abut existing roadways.  The 

property owner agrees that no improvements are required on such roadways to service the 
property.    

 
(3)   Capital Improvements.  Construction of the following capital improvements shall be 
initiated after the effective date of the annexation:  None.  Upon development of the subject 
property or redevelopment, the landowner will be responsible for the development costs the same as 
a developer in a similarly situated area under the ordinances in effect at the time of development or 
redevelopment.  No additional capital improvements are necessary at this time to service the subject 
property the same as similarly situated properties. 
 
(4)  Term.  If not previously expired, this service plan expires at the end of ten (10) years. 
 
(5)  Property Description.  The legal description of the subject property is as set forth in exhibits 
attached to the Annexation Ordinance to which this Service Plan is attached.  
 

 
 



AGENDA COMMENTARY 
 

 

 

Discussion Date:     

Approval Date:     

Submitted By: 

SUBJECT: 

 

 

 

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1.        4. 
2.        5.   
3.        6. 
 

Submitted by:   Funds Available:  Approved as to Form:  Approved By: 

 

Department Head  Finance Director  City Attorney    City Manager 

03/19/2014

Junru Roland

Consider Resolution 15-R-09 in opposition of Senate Bill (SB) number 182, House Bill (HB) 
number 365, Senate Bill (SB) number 156, Senate Joint Resolution number (SJR) 14, House 
Bill (HB) number 957, House Joint Resolution (HJR) number 71, and any other legislation of 
the 84th Texas legislature, regular session, that would limit the ability of the City of Alvin, 
to provide services to its residents and businesses.

SB 182 and its companion bill, HB 365, lowers the property tax rollback rate for a city from 
8% to 4%, with the exception for a city located in an area declared a disaster area by the 
governor or the President of the United States, during the current tax year, and provide 
that a city must hold a ratification election to adopt a tax rate that exceeds the 4% rollback 
rate.  SB 156 reduces the property tax appraisal cap on homesteads from 10% to 5%; 
authorizes a county commissioners court to call an election to increase the homestead 
appraisal cap for all taxing jurisdictions in the county back to a percentage between 6 and 
10; and prohibits a subsequent election from occurring for that purpose for 10 years after 
such an election is held --thereby ignoring market conditions and limiting the homestead 
appraisal cap for an extended period of time. SJR Bill Number 14 and HJR 71 provides the 
state authority to effectuate SB 156 and HB 957 respectively.  HB 957 reduces the property 
tax appraisal cap on residence homesteads from 10 % to 5%.

Move to approve Resolution 15-R-09 in opposition of Senate Bill (SB) number 182, House 
Bill (HB) number 365, Senate Bill (SB) number 156, Senate Joint Resolution number (SJR) 14, 
House Bill (HB) number 957, House Joint Resolution (HJR) number 71, and any other 
legislation of the 84th Texas legislature, regular session, that would limit the ability of the 
City of Alvin, to provide services to its residents and businesses.

Resolution 15-R-09
Bills
TML Summary of Senate Bill 182

Junru 
Roland

Digitally signed by Junru Roland 
DN: cn=Junru Roland, 
email=jroland@cityofalvin.com, 
o=City of Alvin, ou=Finance 
Department, c=US 
Date: 2015.03.10 08:17:17 
-05'00'

Bobbi J 
Kacz

Digitally signed by Bobbi J Kacz 
DN: cn=Bobbi J Kacz, o=City of 
Alvin, ou=Legal Department, 
email=bkacz@cityofalvin.com, c=US 
Date: 2015.03.10 16:15:28 -05'00'

Junru
Roland

Digitally signed by Junru Roland 
DN: cn=Junru Roland, 
email=jroland@cityofalvin.com,
o=City of Alvin, ou=Finance 
Department, c=US 
Date: 2015.03.12 08:24:25 -05'00'



RESOLUTION 15-R-09 
 

A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, 
TEXAS, OPPOSING SENATE BILL NUMBER 182, HOUSE BILL NUMBER 
365, SENATE BILL NUMBER 156, SENATE JOINT RESOLUTION 
NUMBER 14, HOUSE BILL NUMBER 957, HOUSE JOINT RESOLUTION 
NUMBER 71, AND ANY OTHER LEGISLATION OF THE 84TH TEXAS 
LEGISLATURE, REGULAR SESSION, THAT WOULD LIMIT THE 
ABILITY OF THE CITY OF ALVIN TO PROVIDE SERVICES TO ITS 
RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES. 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Alvin, Texas, is extremely interested in issues 
pertaining to the provision of services to its existing residents and businesses and in issues 
pertaining to the growth and development of the City of Alvin, Texas; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Alvin opposes legislation that would change the 
current property and sales and use tax policies and other income producing policies in a 
manner that would cause the City to lose revenue or the ability to raise revenue; and 

 
WHEREAS, Senate Bill Number 182 and its companion bill, House Bill Number 365, lower 
the property tax rollback rate for a city from eight percent (8%) to four percent (4%), with 
an exception for a city located in an area declared a disaster area by the G overnor or the 
P resident of the United States, during the current tax year, and provide that a city must hold 
a ratification election to adopt a tax rate that exceeds the four-percent (4%) rollback rate; and 

 
WHEREAS, Senate Bill Number 156 reduces the property tax appraisal cap on homesteads 
from ten percent (10%) to five percent (5%); authorizes a County Commissioners’ Court to call 
an election to increase the homestead appraisal cap for all taxing jurisdictions in the county 
back to a percentage between six ( 6 )  and ten (10); and prohibits a subsequent election from 
occurring for that purpose for ten ( 1 0 ) years after such an election is held, thereby 
ignoring market conditions and limiting the homestead appraisal cap for an extended 
period of time; and 

 
WHEREAS, Senate Joint Resolution Bill Number 14 provides the Texas Legislature with 
state constitutional authority to effectuate Senate Bill Number 156; and 

 
WHEREAS, House Bill Number 957 reduces the property tax appraisal cap on residence 
homesteads from ten percent (10%) to five percent (5%); and 

 
WHEREAS, House Joint Resolution Bill Number 71 provides the Texas Legislature with 
state constitutional authority to effectuate House Bill Number 957; and 

 
WHEREAS, Senate Bill Number 182, House Bill Number 365, Senate Bill Number 156, 
Senate Joint Resolution Bill Number 14, House Bill Number 957, and House Joint 
Resolution Number 71 fail to consider local needs and market conditions and have the 
potential to negatively impact the residents and businesses of the City of Alvin by restricting 
the ability of the City of Alvin to fund services; and 
 

 



WHEREAS, it is the opinion of the City Council of the City of Alvin that Senate Bill Number 
182, House Bill Number 365, Senate Bill Number 156, Senate Joint Resolution Bill Number 
14, House Bill Number 957, and House Joint Resolution Number 71  would  adversely  impact  
existing  residents  and  businesses  and  the  growth  and development of the City of Alvin, 
Texas; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Alvin urges the 84th Texas Legislature to oppose 
Senate Bill Number 182, House Bill Number 365, Senate Bill Number 156, Senate Joint 
Resolution Bill Number 14, House Bill Number 957, and House Joint Resolution Number 71, 
and any other legislation that would limit the ability of the City of Alvin to provide services 
to its residents and businesses; NOW THEREFORE, 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS: 

 
Section 1. That the facts and recitals set forth in the preamble of this Resolution are hereby 
found to be true and correct and are in all things incorporated herein and made a part 
hereof. 

 
Section 2. That the City Council of the City of Alvin, Texas, hereby urges the 84th Texas 
Legislature to oppose Senate Bill Number 182, House Bill Number 365, Senate Bill Number 
156, Senate Joint Resolution Bill Number 14, House Bill Number 957, House Joint Resolution 
Number 71 and any other legislation that would limit the ability of the City of Alvin to provide 
services to its residents and businesses. 

 
Section 3. That the City Clerk is hereby authorized to forward a copy of this Resolution to 
the City of Alvin’s state representatives. 

 
Section 4.  That this resolution shall take effect immediately upon passage. 

 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this              day of              , 2015. 
 
 

ATTEST:  CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS 
 
 
 
 

By:  By: 
  Dixie Roberts, City Clerk         Paul A. Horn, Mayor 

 

 



By:AABettencourt S.B.ANo.A182

A BILL TO BE ENTITLED

AN ACT

relating to the calculation of the ad valorem rollback tax rates of

certain taxing units.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF TEXAS:

SECTIONA1.AASection 26.04, Tax Code, is amended by amending

Subsection (c) and adding Subsections (c-1) and (c-2) to read as

follows:

(c)AAAn officer or employee designated by the governing body

shall calculate the effective tax rate and the rollback tax rate for

the unit, where:

(1)AA"Effective tax rate" means a rate expressed in

dollars per $100 of taxable value calculated according to the

following formula:

EFFECTIVE TAX RATE = (LAST YEAR ’S LEVY - LOST PROPERTY

LEVY) / (CURRENT TOTAL VALUE - NEW PROPERTY VALUE)

;Aand

(2)AA"Rollback tax rate" means a rate expressed in

dollars per $100 of taxable value calculated according to the

following formula:

ROLLBACK TAX RATE = (EFFECTIVE MAINTENANCE AND

OPERATIONS RATE x 1.04 [1.08]) + CURRENT DEBT RATE

(c-1)AANotwithstanding any other provision of this section,

the designated officer or employee may substitute "1.08" for "1.04"

in the calculation of the rollback tax rate if:

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

1



(1)AAany part of the taxing unit is located in an area

declared a disaster area by the governor or the president of the

United States during the current tax year.

SECTIONA2.AASection 26.041, Tax Code, is amended by amending

Subsections (a), (b), and (c) and adding Subsections (c-1) and

(c-2) to read as follows:

(a)AAIn the first year in which an additional sales and use

tax is required to be collected, the effective tax rate and rollback

tax rate for the unit are calculated according to the following

formulas:

EFFECTIVE TAX RATE = [(LAST YEAR ’S LEVY - LOST PROPERTY

LEVY) / (CURRENT TOTAL VALUE - NEW PROPERTY VALUE)] -

SALES TAX GAIN RATE

and

ROLLBACK TAX RATE = (EFFECTIVE MAINTENANCE AND

OPERATIONS RATE x 1.04 [1.08]) + CURRENT DEBT RATE -

SALES TAX GAIN RATE

where "sales tax gain rate" means a number expressed in dollars per

$100 of taxable value, calculated by dividing the revenue that will

be generated by the additional sales and use tax in the following

year as calculated under Subsection (d) [of this section] by the

current total value.

(b)AAExcept as provided by Subsections (a) and (c) [of this

section], in a year in which a taxing unit imposes an additional

sales and use tax the rollback tax rate for the unit is calculated

according to the following formula, regardless of whether the unit

levied a property tax in the preceding year:

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

S.B.ANo.A182

2



ROLLBACK TAX RATE = [(LAST YEAR ’S MAINTENANCE AND

OPERATIONS EXPENSE x 1.04 [1.08]) / ([TOTAL] CURRENT

TOTAL VALUE - NEW PROPERTY VALUE)] + (CURRENT DEBT

RATEA-ASALES TAX REVENUE RATE)

where "last year ’s maintenance and operations expense" means the

amount spent for maintenance and operations from property tax and

additional sales and use tax revenues in the preceding year, and

"sales tax revenue rate" means a number expressed in dollars per

$100 of taxable value, calculated by dividing the revenue that will

be generated by the additional sales and use tax in the current year

as calculated under Subsection (d) [of this section] by the current

total value.

(c)AAIn a year in which a taxing unit that has been imposing

an additional sales and use tax ceases to impose an additional sales

and use tax the effective tax rate and rollback tax rate for the

unit are calculated according to the following formulas:

EFFECTIVE TAX RATE = [(LAST YEAR ’S LEVY - LOST PROPERTY

LEVY) / (CURRENT TOTAL VALUE - NEW PROPERTY VALUE)] +

SALES TAX LOSS RATE

and

ROLLBACK TAX RATE = [(LAST YEAR ’S MAINTENANCE AND

OPERATIONS EXPENSE x 1.04 [1.08]) / ([TOTAL] CURRENT

TOTAL VALUE - NEW PROPERTY VALUE)] + CURRENT DEBT RATE

where "sales tax loss rate" means a number expressed in dollars per

$100 of taxable value, calculated by dividing the amount of sales

and use tax revenue generated in the last four quarters for which

the information is available by the current total value and "last

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

S.B.ANo.A182

3



year ’s maintenance and operations expense" means the amount spent

for maintenance and operations from property tax and additional

sales and use tax revenues in the preceding year.

(c-1)AANotwithstanding any other provision of this section,

the designated officer or employee may substitute "1.08" for "1.04"

in the calculation of the rollback tax rate if:

(1)AAany part of the taxing unit is located in an area

declared a disaster area by the governor or the president of the

United States during the current tax year.

SECTIONA3.AASection 26.08, Tax Code, is amended by amending

Subsections (a), (b), (d), (d-1) and (d-2) to read as follows:

Sec. 26.08.AAELECTION TO RATIFY [SCHOOL] TAXES. (a)AAIf the

governing body of a taxing unit [school district] adopts a tax rate

that exceeds the taxing unit ’s [district ’s] rollback tax rate, the

registered voters of the taxing unit [district] at an election held

for that purpose must determine whether to approve the adopted tax

rate. When increased expenditure of money by a taxing unit [school

district] is necessary to respond to a disaster, including a

tornado, hurricane, flood, or other calamity, but not including a

drought, that has impacted a taxing unit [school district] and the

governor has requested federal disaster assistance for the area in

which the taxing unit [school district] is located, an election is

not required under this section to approve the tax rate adopted by

the governing body for the year following the year in which the

disaster occurs.

(b)AAThe governing body shall order that the election be held

in the taxing unit [school district] on a date not less than 30 or

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

S.B.ANo.A182

4



more than 90 days after the day on which it adopted the tax rate.

Section 41.001, Election Code, does not apply to the election

unless a date specified by that section falls within the time

permitted by this section. At the election, the ballots shall be

prepared to permit voting for or against the proposition:

"Approving the ad valorem tax rate of $_____ per $100 valuation in

(name of taxing unit [school district]) for the current year, a rate

that is $_____ higher per $100 valuation than the school district

rollback tax rate." The ballot proposition must include the

adopted tax rate and the difference between that rate and the

rollback tax rate in the appropriate places.

(d)AAIf the proposition is not approved as provided by

Subsection (c), the governing body may not adopt a tax rate for the

taxing unit [school district] for the current year that exceeds the

taxing unit ’s [school district ’s] rollback tax rate.

(d-1)AAIf, after tax bills for the taxing unit [school

district] have been mailed, a proposition to approve the taxing

unit ’s [school district ’s] adopted tax rate is not approved by the

voters of the taxing unit [district] at an election held under this

section, on subsequent adoption of a new tax rate by the governing

body of the taxing unit [district], the assessor for the taxing unit

[school] shall prepare and mail corrected tax bills. The assessor

shall include with each bill a brief explanation of the reason for

and effect of the corrected bill. The date on which the taxes

become delinquent for the year is extended by a number of days equal

to the number of days between the date the first tax bills were sent

and the date the corrected tax bills were sent.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

S.B.ANo.A182

5



(d-2)AAIf a property owner pays taxes calculated using the

originally adopted tax rate of the taxing unit [school district]

and the proposition to approve the adopted tax rate is not approved

by voters, the taxing unit [school district] shall refund the

difference between the amount of taxes paid and the amount due under

the subsequently adopted rate if the difference between the amount

of taxes paid and the amount due under the subsequent rate is $1 or

more. If the difference between the amount of taxes paid and the

amount due under the subsequent rate is less than $1, the taxing

unit [school district] shall refund the difference on request of

the taxpayer. An application for a refund of less than $1 must be

made within 90 days after the date the refund becomes due or the

taxpayer forfeits the right to the refund.

SECTIONA4.AASection 49.236, Water Code, as added by Chapters

248 (H.B. 1541) and 335 (S.B. 392), Acts of the 78th Legislature,

Regular Session, 2003, is reenacted and amended to read as follows:

Sec.A49.236.AANOTICE OF TAX HEARING. (a)AABefore the board

adopts an ad valorem tax rate for the district for debt service,

operation and maintenance purposes, or contract purposes, the board

shall give notice of each meeting of the board at which the adoption

of a tax rate will be considered. The notice must:

(1)AAcontain a statement in substantially the following

form:

"NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON TAX RATE

"The (name of the district) will hold a public hearing on a

proposed tax rate for the tax year (year of tax levy) on (date and

time) at (meeting place). Your individual taxes may increase or

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

S.B.ANo.A182

6



decrease, depending on the change in the taxable value of your

property in relation to the change in taxable value of all other

property and the tax rate that is adopted.

"(Names of all board members and, if a vote was taken, an

indication of how each voted on the proposed tax rate and an

indication of any absences.)";

(2)AAcontain the following information:

(A)AAthe district ’s total adopted tax rate for the

preceding year and the proposed tax rate, expressed as an amount per

$100;

(B)AAthe difference, expressed as an amount per

$100 and as a percent increase or decrease, as applicable, in the

proposed tax rate compared to the adopted tax rate for the preceding

year;

(C)AAthe average appraised value of a residence

homestead in the district in the preceding year and in the current

year; the district ’s total homestead exemption, other than an

exemption available only to disabled persons or persons 65 years of

age or older, applicable to that appraised value in each of those

years; and the average taxable value of a residence homestead in the

district in each of those years, disregarding any homestead

exemption available only to disabled persons or persons 65 years of

age or older;

(D)AAthe amount of tax that would have been

imposed by the district in the preceding year on a residence

homestead appraised at the average appraised value of a residence

homestead in that year, disregarding any homestead exemption

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

S.B.ANo.A182

7



available only to disabled persons or persons 65 years of age or

older;

(E)AAthe amount of tax that would be imposed by the

district in the current year on a residence homestead appraised at

the average appraised value of a residence homestead in that year,

disregarding any homestead exemption available only to disabled

persons or persons 65 years of age or older, if the proposed tax

rate is adopted; and

(F)AAthe difference between the amounts of tax

calculated under Paragraphs (D) and (E), expressed in dollars and

cents and described as the annual percentage increase or decrease,

as applicable, in the tax to be imposed by the district on the

average residence homestead in the district in the current year if

the proposed tax rate is adopted; and

(3)AAcontain a statement in substantially the following

form:

"NOTICE OF TAXPAYERS ’ RIGHT TO ROLLBACK ELECTION

"If taxes on the average residence homestead increase by more

than four [eight] percent, the qualified voters of the district by

petition may require that an election be held to determine whether

to reduce the operation and maintenance tax rate to the rollback tax

rate under Section 49.236(d), Water Code."

(b)AANotice of the hearing shall be:

(1)AApublished at least once in a newspaper having

general circulation in the district at least seven days before the

date of the hearing; or

(2)AAmailed to each owner of taxable property in the

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

S.B.ANo.A182

8



district, at the address for notice shown on the most recently

certified tax roll of the district, at least 10 days before the date

of the hearing.

(c)AAThe notice provided under this section may not be

smaller than one-quarter page of a standard-size or tabloid-size

newspaper of general circulation, and the headline on the notice

must be in 18-point or larger type.

(d)AAIf the governing body of a district adopts a combined

debt service, operation and maintenance, and contract tax rate that

would impose more than 1.04 [1.08] times the amount of tax imposed

by the district in the preceding year on a residence homestead

appraised at the average appraised value of a residence homestead

in the district in that year, disregarding any homestead exemption

available only to disabled persons or persons 65 years of age or

older, the qualified voters of the district by petition may require

that an election be held to determine whether [or not] to reduce the

tax rate adopted for the current year to the rollback tax rate in

accordance with the procedures provided by Sections 26.07(b)-(g)

and 26.081, Tax Code. For purposes of Sections 26.07(b)-(g) and

this subsection, the rollback tax rate is the current year ’s debt

service and contract tax rates plus the operation and maintenance

tax rate that would impose 1.04 [1.08] times the amount of the

operation and maintenance tax imposed by the district in the

preceding year on a residence homestead appraised at the average

appraised value of a residence homestead in the district in that

year, disregarding any homestead exemption available only to

disabled persons or persons 65 years of age or older.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

S.B.ANo.A182

9



(e)AANotwithstanding any other provision of this section,

the board may substitute "eight percent" for "four percent" in

Subsection (a) and "1.08" for "1.04" in Subsection (d) if:

(1)AAany part of the district is located in an area

declared a disaster area by the governor or the president of the

United States during the current tax year.

SECTIONA5.AASection 26.07, Tax Code is repealed.

SECTIONA6.AA(a)AAThe change in law made by this Act applies

to the ad valorem tax rate of a taxing unit beginning with the 2015

tax year, except as provided by Subsection (b) of this section.

(b)AAIf the governing body of a taxing unit adopted an ad

valorem tax rate for the taxing unit for the 2015 tax year before

the effective date of this Act, the change in law made by this Act

applies to the ad valorem tax rate of that taxing unit beginning

with the 2016 tax year, and the law in effect when the tax rate was

adopted applies to the 2015 tax year with respect to that taxing

unit.

SECTIONA7.AAThis Act takes effect immediately if it receives

a vote of two-thirds of all the members elected to each house, as

provided by Section 39, Article III, Texas Constitution. If this

Act does not receive the vote necessary for immediate effect, this

Act takes effect on the 91st day after the last day of the

legislative session.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

S.B.ANo.A182

10



By:AANichols S.B.ANo.A156

A BILL TO BE ENTITLED

AN ACT

relating to the limitation on increases in the appraised value of a

residence homestead for ad valorem taxation.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF TEXAS:

SECTIONA1.AASection 23.23, Tax Code, is amended by amending

Subsection (a) and adding Subsection (h) to read as follows:

(a)AAExcept as provided by Subsection (h), notwithstanding

[Notwithstanding] the requirements of Section 25.18, and

regardless of whether the appraisal office has appraised the

property and determined the market value of the property for the tax

year, an appraisal office may increase the appraised value of a

residence homestead for a tax year to an amount not to exceed the

lesser of:

(1)AAthe market value of the property for the most

recent tax year that the market value was determined by the

appraisal office; or

(2)AAthe sum of:

(A)AAfive [10] percent of the appraised value of

the property for the preceding tax year;

(B)AAthe appraised value of the property for the

preceding tax year; and

(C)AAthe market value of all new improvements to

the property.

(h)AAThe commissioners court of a county may call an election

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

84R2295 SMH-D 1



in the county to permit the voters of the county to determine

whether a percentage limitation on maximum appraised value

determined in the manner provided by Subsection (a)(2) using a

percentage that is greater than the percentage specified by

Subsection (a)(2)(A) but not more than 10 percent will apply to the

taxation of a residence homestead in the county by each taxing unit

having territory in the county. The election shall be held on the

date of the next general election for state and county officers.

The ballot proposition shall specify the proposed percentage

limitation on maximum appraised value. If a majority of the votes

cast at the election do not favor the establishment of the proposed

limitation, a subsequent election under this subsection may not be

held before the 10th year after the year in which the election is

held. If a majority of the votes cast at the election favor the

establishment of the proposed limitation, the limitation applies

beginning with the tax year following the year in which the election

is held and remains in effect until amended or repealed by the

voters of the county at a subsequent election called by the

commissioners court. An election to amend or repeal the limitation

may not be held before the 10th year after the year in which the

proposition establishing the limitation was approved by the voters.

If the voters of a county amend or repeal a limitation, the

amendment or repeal applies beginning with the tax year after the

year in which the election is held.

SECTIONA2.AASection 42.26(d), Tax Code, is amended to read as

follows:

(d)AAFor purposes of this section, the value of the property

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

S.B.ANo.A156

2



subject to the suit and the value of a comparable property or sample

property that is used for comparison must be the market value

determined by the appraisal district when the property is a

residence homestead subject to a [the] limitation on appraised

value imposed by or established under Section 23.23.

SECTIONA3.AAThis Act applies only to the appraisal of a

residence homestead for ad valorem tax purposes for a tax year that

begins on or after January 1, 2016.

SECTIONA4.AAThis Act takes effect January 1, 2016, but only

if the constitutional amendment proposed by the 84th Legislature,

Regular Session, 2015, to authorize the legislature to limit the

maximum appraised value of a residence homestead for ad valorem tax

purposes to 105 percent or less of the appraised value of the

property for the preceding tax year and to permit the voters of a

county to establish a higher limitation not to exceed 110 percent on

the maximum appraised value of a residence homestead in the county

is approved by the voters. If that amendment is not approved by the

voters, this Act has no effect.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

S.B.ANo.A156

3



By:AANichols S.J.R.ANo.A14

A JOINT RESOLUTION

proposing a constitutional amendment to authorize the legislature

to limit the maximum appraised value of a residence homestead for ad

valorem tax purposes to 105 percent or less of the appraised value

of the property for the preceding tax year and to permit the voters

of a county to establish a higher limitation not to exceed 110

percent on the maximum appraised value of a residence homestead in

the county.

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF TEXAS:

SECTIONA1.AASection 1, Article VIII, Texas Constitution, is

amended by amending Subsection (i) and adding Subsections (i-1) and

(i-2) to read as follows:

(i)AANotwithstanding Subsections (a) and (b) of this

section, the Legislature by general law may limit the maximum

appraised value of a residence homestead for ad valorem tax

purposes in a tax year to the lesser of the most recent market value

of the residence homestead as determined by the appraisal entity or

105 [110] percent, or a lesser [greater] percentage but not less

than 100 percent, of the appraised value of the residence homestead

for the preceding tax year. A limitation on appraised values

authorized by this subsection:

(1)AAtakes effect as to a residence homestead on the

later of the effective date of the law imposing the limitation or

January 1 of the tax year following the first tax year the owner

qualifies the property for an exemption under Section 1-b of this

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

84R2294 SMH-D 1



article; and

(2)AAexpires on January 1 of the first tax year that

neither the owner of the property when the limitation took effect

nor the owner ’s spouse or surviving spouse qualifies for an

exemption under Section 1-b of this article.

(i-1)AANotwithstanding Subsections (a) and (b) of this

section, if the Legislature establishes a limitation on the maximum

appraised value of a residence homestead as authorized by

Subsection (i) of this section, the commissioners court of a county

may call an election in the county to permit the voters to determine

by majority vote whether to establish for purposes of ad valorem

taxation by each political subdivision in the county a percentage

limitation on the maximum appraised value of a residence homestead

in the county that is greater than the percentage established by the

Legislature under Subsection (i) of this section but not more than

110 percent. The ballot proposition shall specify the proposed

percentage limitation on maximum appraised value. If approved by

the voters, the limitation applies beginning with the tax year

following the year in which the election is held. A limitation on

maximum appraised value established under this subsection takes

effect as to a residence homestead on the later of January 1 of the

tax year following the year in which the election is held or January

1 of the tax year following the first tax year the owner qualifies

the property for an exemption under Section 1-b of this article. As

to a residence homestead, the limitation expires on January 1 of the

first tax year that neither the owner of the property when the

limitation took effect nor the owner ’s spouse or surviving spouse

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

S.J.R.ANo.A14

2



qualifies for an exemption under Section 1-b of this article. If

the voters of a county establish a limitation on maximum appraised

value under this subsection, the limitation remains in effect until

the tax year following a year in which the limitation is amended or

repealed by the voters of the county at a subsequent election called

by the commissioners court. The Legislature by general law may

limit the frequency with which elections authorized by this

subsection may be called in a county.

(i-2)AAThe Legislature by general law may provide that a

limitation on the maximum appraised value of a residence homestead

established under Subsection (i) or (i-1) of this section does not

apply to a new improvement to the residence homestead.

SECTIONA2.AAThis proposed constitutional amendment shall be

submitted to the voters at an election to be held November 3, 2015.

The ballot shall be printed to permit voting for or against the

proposition: "The constitutional amendment to authorize the

legislature to limit the maximum appraised value of a residence

homestead for ad valorem tax purposes to 105 percent or less of the

appraised value of the property for the preceding tax year and to

permit the voters of a county to establish a higher limitation not

to exceed 110 percent on the maximum appraised value of a residence

homestead in the county."

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

S.J.R.ANo.A14

3



By:AABohac H.B.ANo.A957

A BILL TO BE ENTITLED

AN ACT

relating to the limitation on increases in the appraised value of a

residence homestead for ad valorem taxation.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF TEXAS:

SECTIONA1.AASection 23.23(a), Tax Code, is amended to read as

follows:

(a)AANotwithstanding the requirements of Section 25.18 and

regardless of whether the appraisal office has appraised the

property and determined the market value of the property for the tax

year, an appraisal office may increase the appraised value of a

residence homestead for a tax year to an amount not to exceed the

lesser of:

(1)AAthe market value of the property for the most

recent tax year that the market value was determined by the

appraisal office; or

(2)AAthe sum of:

(A)AAfive [10] percent of the appraised value of

the property for the preceding tax year;

(B)AAthe appraised value of the property for the

preceding tax year; and

(C)AAthe market value of all new improvements to

the property.

SECTIONA2.AAThis Act applies only to the appraisal for ad

valorem taxation of residence homesteads for a tax year that begins

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

84R2515 TJB-D 1



on or after the effective date of this Act.

SECTIONA3.AAThis Act takes effect January 1, 2016, but only

if the constitutional amendment proposed by the 84th Legislature,

Regular Session, 2015, to authorize the legislature to set a lower

limit on the maximum appraised value of a residence homestead for ad

valorem taxation is approved by the voters. If that amendment is

not approved by the voters, this Act has no effect.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

H.B.ANo.A957

2



By:AABohac H.J.R.ANo.A71

A JOINT RESOLUTION

proposing a constitutional amendment to authorize the legislature

to set a lower limit on the maximum appraised value of a residence

homestead for ad valorem taxation.

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF TEXAS:

SECTIONA1.AASection 1(i), Article VIII, Texas Constitution,

is amended to read as follows:

(i)AANotwithstanding Subsections (a) and (b) of this

section, the Legislature by general law may limit the maximum

appraised value of a residence homestead for ad valorem tax

purposes in a tax year to the lesser of the most recent market value

of the residence homestead as determined by the appraisal entity or

105 [110] percent, or a greater percentage, of the appraised value

of the residence homestead for the preceding tax year. A limitation

on appraised values authorized by this subsection:

(1)AAtakes effect as to a residence homestead on the

later of the effective date of the law imposing the limitation or

January 1 of the tax year following the first tax year the owner

qualifies the property for an exemption under Section 1-b of this

article; and

(2)AAexpires on January 1 of the first tax year that

neither the owner of the property when the limitation took effect

nor the owner ’s spouse or surviving spouse qualifies for an

exemption under Section 1-b of this article.

SECTIONA2.AAThis proposed constitutional amendment shall be

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

84R2514 TJB-D 1



submitted to the voters at an election to be held November 3, 2015.

The ballot shall be printed to permit voting for or against the

proposition: "The constitutional amendment to authorize the

legislature to set a lower limit on the maximum appraised value of a

residence homestead for ad valorem taxation."

1

2

3

4

5

H.J.R.ANo.A71

2



AGENDA COMMENTARY 
 

 

 

Discussion Date:     

Approval Date:     

Submitted By: 

SUBJECT: 

 

 

 

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1.        4. 
2.        5.   
3.        6. 
 

Submitted by:   Funds Available:  Approved as to Form:  Approved By: 

 

Department Head  Finance Director  City Attorney    City Manager 

03/19/2015

J. Roland

Receive and acknowledge the monthly financial report for February, 2015.

Move to acknowledge the monthly financial report for February, 2015.

Financial Report

Junru 
Roland

Digitally signed by Junru Roland 
DN: cn=Junru Roland, 
email=jroland@cityofalvin.com, 
o=City of Alvin, ou=Finance 
Department, c=US 
Date: 2015.03.12 08:21:39 
-05'00'

Junru
Roland

Digitally signed by Junru Roland 
DN: cn=Junru Roland, 
email=jroland@cityofalvin.com, o=City 
of Alvin, ou=Finance Department, 
c=US
Date: 2015.03.12 08:21:47 -05'00'

Bobbi J 
Kacz

Digitally signed by Bobbi J Kacz 
DN: cn=Bobbi J Kacz, o=City of 
Alvin, ou=Legal Department, 
email=bkacz@cityofalvin.com, c=US 
Date: 2015.03.11 18:08:51 -05'00'

Junru
Roland

Digitally signed by Junru Roland 
DN: cn=Junru Roland, 
email=jroland@cityofalvin.com,
o=City of Alvin, ou=Finance 
Department, c=US 
Date: 2015.03.12 08:21:53 -05'00'


	Agenda 03/19/15
	SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS
	Proclamation - Fair Housing 
	Proclamation


	APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	CC Min - Feb 26, 2015 
	CC Min - Mar 5, 2015

	CONSENT AGENDA
	Ord 15-I; Mid Year Budget Amend.
	Ordinance 15-I

	Training - Municipal Ct. Judges
	Judge Starkey
	Judge Pannell


	OTHER BUSINESS
	Presentation of CAFR
	Auditor Disclosure Letter
	2014 CAFR
	Single Audit Reports

	Auditor Engagement Letter
	2015 Letter of Engagement

	Ord 15-K; Annexation - Franks Casing
	Ordinance 15-K

	Res 15-R-09; Opposition to proposed  State Legislation 
	Resolution 15-R-09
	SB 182
	SB 156
	SJR 14
	HB 957
	HJB 71


	Financial Report - Feb 2015




